
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL 
NEEDS AND DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability, Councillor Bob Standley. 
 
MONDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2020 AT 10:00AM 
 
CC2,  COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
++Please note, the Lead Member will not be present in person, but will be taking the 
decisions remotely++ 
 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 22 October 2020  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosures of interests   

 
Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3   Urgent items   
 
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4   East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2020  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

5   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 13 November 2020 
 
 
Contact 
Aaron Sams 
Tel: 01273 335274 
Email: aaron.sams@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The broadcast is accessible at 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITY 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability held at  County Hall, Lewes on 22 October 2020. 
 
++ The Lead Member was not present in person, but took the decisions remotely ++ 
 

 
Councillors  Roy Galley, Alan Shuttleworth and Sylvia Tidy spoke on item 4 (see minute 8) 
Councillors Alan Shuttleworth and Sylvia Tidy spoke on item 5 (see minute 9) 
 
 
5 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 21 MAY 2020  
 
5.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 21 
May 2020. 
 
6 DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
6.1 There were no disclosures of interest. 
 
7 URGENT ITEMS  
 
7.1 There were no urgent items. 
 
8 SCHOOL ORGANISATION PLAN 2020-2024  
 
8.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services regarding 
the School Organisation Plan for 2020-2024. 
 
8.2 The Lead Member RESVOLED - to approve the publication of the School Organisation 
Plan 2020-2024. 
 
Reason 
 
8.3 The local authority has a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient school places to 
meet present and future demand across the county. The School Organisation Plan for the 
period 2020-2024 sets out the projected demand for places in the future and where the local 
authority thinks it will need to commission additional places or reorganise existing provision. 
 
 
9 ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR COMMUNITY AND CONTROLLED SCHOOLS IN 
EAST SUSSEX 2022-23- PERMISSION TO CONSULT  
 
9.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services seeking 
approval to consult on admission arrangements for the 2022/23 school year. 
 
9.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to – approve to consult on the proposed admission 
arrangements for the 2022/23 year, including: 
 
1) the proposed  unchanged admission priorities 
 
2) the proposed Co-ordinated Schemes of Admission  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

3) the proposed Published Admission Numbers (PANs) for community and controlled schools 
for 2022/23  
 
4) the proposed change to the Newhaven primary schools’ pre-defined community area, with all 
other areas unchanged from 2021-22. 
 
Reason 
 
9.3 The County Council is required by law to carry out consultation on admissions 
arrangements every seven years or sooner if any changes to those arrangements for the 
schools where the local authority is the admissions authority. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special 

Educational Needs and Disability 
 
Date:   23 November 2020 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services 
 
Title of report:  East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2020 
 
Purpose of report: To approve an extension to the period covered by the 

2019/20 East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 
(CSA) to include the 2020/21 academic year. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Lead Member is recommended to approve an extension to the period 
covered by the 2019/20 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment to include the 
2020/21 academic year. 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 East Sussex County Council published a Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 
(CSA) in November 2019.  The report can be found by following the link below:  
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/14230/childcare-sufficiency-assessment.pdf 
 
1.2       The Childcare Act 2006 requires the local authority to secure sufficient 
childcare provision for children aged 0-14 years old (up to 17 years for children with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities), to report annually to members on how 
this is being done and make that report available and accessible to parents.  
However, local authorities and childcare providers find themselves in a very different 
place compared with twelve months ago.  Due to Covid-19 it is difficult to predict at 
this time how the childcare market could change.  The local authority and childcare 
providers will need to look at the short- and long-term sustainability of provision.  As 
time goes on and the impact of Covid-19 restrictions remain in place, concerns within 
the sector grow as challenges and changes impact socially and economically on the 
families of East Sussex.  
 
1.3 Due to the current Covid-19 situation, and for the reasons set out in section 4 
below, the local authority is proposing that the period covered by the 2019/20 CSA is 
extended to include the 2020/21 academic year, with a new Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment for the academic year 2021/22 to be published in autumn 2021.  The 
extended publication period of the 2019/20 CSA will provide the local authority with a 
robust record of the childcare market at a point in time prior to the Covid-19 
pandemic against which changes in the market can be monitored to provide an 
account of how the market and take-up of childcare provision by families in East 
Sussex is changing.  
 
2.  Supply and demand 
 
2.1 Providers across the whole sector are working hard to sustain their 
businesses.  The local authority recognises this and has fully supported providers to 
remain viable since the country went into the initial lockdown in March 2020.  
 
2.2 The impact on the demand for childcare places for all providers has been 
highly dynamic.  In the period March to August 2020 the focus was on providing 
childcare provision for the children of key workers and identified vulnerable children.  
In April 2020 only 40% of early years providers in East Sussex were open, reflecting 
the national situation. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/media/14230/childcare-sufficiency-assessment.pdf


2.3  As the initial lockdown period began it became apparent that the demand on 
all early years funding entitlements would change moving forwards. This includes 
funding entitlements relating to the least advantaged two-year olds, universal three-
and four-year olds, and 30 hours free childcare support. Future demand for paid-for 
childcare, and/or the ability of families to access additional services and pay 
additional charges were unknown.  
 
2.4 Since June 2020, as the country came out of lockdown childcare providers 
which had been closed due to Covid-19, began to re-open and the number of 
providers steadily increased to 90%+ by September 2020. However, not all providers 
are fully open, with some only offering a partial service to families in their care. The 
local authority has recently seen the closure of some early years provision in the 
county. However, these closures were not directly due to the impact of Covid-19 and 
these providers had been identified as potentially at risk prior to the pandemic.  
 
2.5 Over the course of the last few months a change in demand for funded Early 
Years childcare places has become evident.  Due to the economic impact of Covid-
19 we have seen a rise in the number of funded places for two-year olds in East 
Sussex, whilst the number of 30-hour places appears to be declining.  This change is 
likely to reflect the number of parents who may have lost their jobs or are on reduced 
hours of employment and the increased number of families now applying for 
Universal Credit.  As demand from families drops the sector may also have to deal 
with the impact of a surplus of places. 
 
2.6 Due to Covd-19 it is difficult to predict at this time how the childcare market 
might change.  At a time when childcare providers are struggling to sustain their 
businesses it has not been possible to engage and consult with the sector as 
planned in order to audit future capacity.  Current economic uncertainty also makes 
gauging future parental demand difficult.  Sustainability of the childcare sector as a 
whole remains a challenge as new central government financial support is 
announced, and levels of parental demand are lower than pre Covid-19 levels.   
 
3.  Actions to date 
 
3.1  The table below lists the key actions taken by the local authority since March 
2020 to support childcare providers to remain sustainable in a very challenging 
environment and for families to ensure that vulnerable and key worker children had 
access to a childcare place if needed.  
 

Date Communication/Action 

6 March 2020 Email to all eligible Early Years (EY) providers confirming the local 
authority would continue to pay EYEE (Early Years Education 
Entitlement) grant to all providers in the summer 2020 funding period 
whether they were open or closed due to Covid-19. 

20 March 2020 Local authority officers invited to join Department for Education (DfE) 
project group to feed into policy reflecting Covid-19 situation (ongoing).  

w/c 23 March 2020 Local authority contacted all providers to offer support and identify open 
provision (ongoing). 

w/c 23 March 2020 Local authority began a brokerage service to support families of 
vulnerable/keyworker children who needed childcare provision, this 
included care over holiday periods and is ongoing. 
 
Local authority staff work collectively to ensure identified vulnerable 
children are supported in their childcare place (ongoing). 
 
Communication to families via Parental Information published by the EY 
Funding Team, social media postings, Local Authority external 
communications (ongoing). 

25 March 2020 Introduction of a daily EY message board providing information on DfE, 
Ofsted, LA and Public Health updates to providers (ongoing). 

30 March 2020 Commencement of regular and targeted communication with all open Page 6



childcare provision contacted regularly by local authority EY 
Improvement Team to offer advice and support (ongoing). 

1 April 2020 Introduction of Daily Google Form – sent to all childcare providers to 
submit information on whether open or closed and the number of 
children accessing provision. Data shared with the DfE twice weekly. 
Since August the Google Form is submitted by childcare providers on a 
weekly basis and data shared with DfE weekly. 

April/May 2020 Additional financial support offered to all open eligible EY providers of 
an additional £250 per vulnerable / key worker child accessing a 
childcare place during April and May.  The local authority also funded 
children outside of advertised funding periods for parents who had 
access to a childcare place through holiday periods. This additional 
financial support provided by the local authority incentivised settings to 
remain open. The local authority also signposted the sector to other 
financial support provided by central government e.g. Job Retention 
Furlough Scheme, grant applications etc. 

September – 
December 2020 

The local authority is providing financial support to eligible EY providers 
where the expected level of funding for 2, 3- and 4-year olds is lower 
than it was for the autumn 2019 return. This includes paying grants to 
providers to address the deficit in funding caused by the difference 
between the 2019 and 2020 numbers of children accessing non-funded 
hours. The additional financial support around non-funded hours will 
only be in place for the autumn 2020 funding period. It will enable 
eligible EY providers to remain viable at a time of challenge in the 
sector and will be paid to providers who remain open for the full 
2020/21 academic year. The local authority will re-claim grant monies 
given for non-funded hours to childcare providers who close prior to 26 
July 2021. 

 
3.2 The above actions form part of the local authority’s statutory duty to support 
the sector in providing enough childcare places to meet parental demand as far as is 
reasonably practicable. 
 
4.  How to measure future likely impact 
 
4.1 Moving forward and as Covid-19 remains a threat in the immediate and 
medium term, an assessment of employment levels and the job market will need to 
be undertaken because of the significant impact this has on families’ childcare 
requirements. The local authority’s engagement with childcare providers has 
remained consistently strong. Links with other services such as Job Centre Plus and 
the District and Borough Councils will provide the local intelligence needed to 
determine the impact of higher unemployment, more people working from home and 
any changes in planned housing development on future childcare supply and 
demand. Understanding the numbers of families becoming eligible for two-year 
funding or no longer being eligible for 30 hours funding will help to inform how the 
local authority needs to manage the childcare market.  
 
4.2 In order to publish a fully refreshed CSA in 2020/21, the local authority would 
need to undertake a full update of its EY forecasts.  Due to Covid-19 there are some 
challenges to this: 
 

• Uncertainty around future capacity. Risk of childcare businesses closing in 
the spring 2021 term. 

• The major impact Covid-19 has had on demand for childcare places, 
recognising the changing patterns of take-up by families and the impact this 
will have on the sector moving forward. 

• Difficulty in knowing whether identified changes will be temporary, or more 
typical of the position going forward into 2021 and beyond. 

• The impact Covid-19 will have on future births and the housing market. 
• The low uptake numbers in 2019/20 related to Covid-19 have created 

technical challenges for the EY forecasting model because it calculates Page 7



uptake factors on the basis of the most recent years’ data.  This means that 
future uptake forecasts could potentially be artificially low. 
 

4.3 Due to the challenges outlined above, it is proposed to extend the period 
covered by the 2019/20 CSA to include 2020/21 and to support it with a statistical 
report which only uses current and historic data. This report would gauge the 
sufficiency of current childcare provision in each of the 80 or so EY areas, should one 
or more settings close for financial or other reasons. For each area, the report would: 
 

 List the settings in each area and their capacity. 

 Set out the current levels of spare full-time equivalent capacity. The report 
template will include a tool showing surplus/shortfall of places in EY areas 
across the county (see Appendix 1). 

• Look at current and recent patterns of demand to help identify new patterns 
as they emerge. 

 Use GP data and housing data to indicate whether short term demographic 
pressures are likely to be upward or downward.  

 
5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  
 
5.1  Assessing childcare sufficiency is a continuing process.  The sector is in a 
state of flux and an approach of analysing statistical reports to identify and target 
emerging areas of concern will provide a solid foundation for this work. The current 
published CSA will provide the local authority with a benchmark against which to 
monitor the market and provide a basis for decisions by providers and the local 
authority with regard to childcare provision in the future. It is proposed that a fully 
updated CSA covering the period 2021/22 is published in the autumn of 2021. 
 
5.2 In the meantime, the local authority will: 
 

 Continue dialogue with all childcare providers via the weekly message board. 

 Provide support from the local authorities EY Funding and Improvement 
Teams. 

 Continue to support families to find/access a funded childcare place. 

 Collate autumn 2020 Headcount Data to feed into updating current 
capacity/demand reporting – October 2020. 

 Collate weekly data from providers to identify potential areas of concern, 
using the current published CSA report as a benchmark of provision prior to 
March 2020. 

 Re-assess financial support required for the EY Sector – November 2020. 

 Assess the impact of changes to East Sussex EY workforce – Spring 2020. 

 Manage provider consultation (covering – current/future parental demands, 
barriers to meeting future demand, flexibility of offer to families, any other 
concerns impacting on future business delivery)– February 2021. 

 Manage parental consultation (covering- ages of children currently accessing 
a childcare place, current/future needs, perceived barriers to accessing a 
funded place) - February 2021. 
 

5.3 Accordingly, the Lead Member is recommended to approve an extension to 
the period covered by the 2019/20 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment to include the 
2020/21 academic year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services  

Page 8



 
 
Contact Officer: Jane Spice 
Tel. No. 01323 747425/ 07876 035 500 
Email: jane.spice@eastsussex.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES  
Appendix 1 – Template for Early Years Statistical Reports 
 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Template for EY Statistical Reports 

Eastbourne West 
        

         Providers As At April 2020 
        

         

PROVIDER NAME 
Provider 

Type 

EY 
Planning 

Area 

No. of 
hours 

open per 
week 

No. of 
Weeks 

open per 
year 

Max No. 
Children 

Registered 
(Staff) 

Offering 
30 Hours 

? 

FTE 
Capacity 
(Places) 

Comments 

A.N Other Childminder Eastbourne 
West 

44.0 48 3 Yes 4 

  
  Childminder Eastbourne 

West 
30.0 45 6 Yes 6 

  
  Childminder Eastbourne 

West 
55.0 49 6 Yes 7 

  
  Childminder Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 50 6 Yes 7 

  
  Childminder Eastbourne 

West 
40.0 51 6 Yes 7 

  
  Childminder Eastbourne 

West 
60.0 50 3 Yes 4 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
51.3 51 83 Yes 100 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
47.5 50 56 Yes 67 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
60.0 52 59 Yes 71 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 51 66 Yes 79 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
32.5 38 24 Yes 23 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 51 70 Yes 84 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 48 23 Yes 28 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
52.5 51 120 Yes 144 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 52 60 No 72 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
30.0 39 50 Yes 50 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
50.0 51 27 Yes 32 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
42.3 39 36 Yes 43 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
55.0 51 56 Yes 67 

  
  Private Eastbourne 

West 
44.0 47 26 Yes 31 

  
  Voluntary Eastbourne 

West 
25.5 38 16 Yes 12 

  

P
age 11

A
ppendix 1



  Voluntary Eastbourne 
West 

37.5 39 28 Yes 32 

  
Area Total         830   970   

 

 

        Eastbourne West FTE Demand v FTE Capacity in All Settings 
     

Type of Capacity/Demand 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

 
  

Suplus/Shortfall 
Key   

FTE Capacity in All Settings 1,049 969 969 

 

Icon Number   

FTE Demand for All Children 779 782 751 

 
   -10 or lower 

Surplus/Shortfall 270 187 217 

 
  between -10 and 20 

     
   20 or more   

EY Model Results 27.07.20 (Apr20) Charts test 
       Notes: FTE Demand measures the number of full time equivalent places accessed by children attending settings in the specified area, irrespective of where 

they live. 

        

        

        Eastbourne West Demand For EY Places 
       Demand Measure 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

    Provider Address Total No of Unfunded 0 to 2YOs 314 313 303 

    Provider Address Total No of Funded 2YOs 107 71 69 

    Provider Address Total No of Funded 3YOs 438 441 414 

    Provider Address Total No of Funded 4YOs 290 299 298 

    Provider Address Total No of Funded Children 835 811 781 

    Provider Address Total No All Children 1,149 1,124 1,085 

    

        EY Model Results 27.07.20 (Apr20) Charts test 
       Demand by provider address  measures the number of children attending settings in the specified area, irrespective of where they live 

        

        

        Provider Address No. Accessing Standard and Extended Hours 
     Early Years Planning Area 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

    Eastbourne West 257 292 290 

    

        EY Model Results 27.07.20 (Apr20) Charts test 
       Demand by provider address  measures the number of children attending settings in the specified area, irrespective of where they live 

Where applicable, the number of children accessing extended hours, includes those also accessing non funded hours 

        

        

        

Eastbourne West - GP Registrations by Home Address October 2019, Age as at 31st August 2019 
   

P
age 12



Age of Child as At 31st August 2019 4 yo 3 yo 2 yo 1 yo 0 yo 

  

EY Funding Entitlement Age - April 2020 
EY 4YO 

or EY 
3YO 

EY 3YO 
or EY 
2YO 

EY 2YO  
or Under 

2 

Under 2 Under 2 

  

EY Funding Entitlement Age - April 2021 
School 

Age 
EY 4YO 

or EY 
3YO 

EY 3YO 
or EY 
2YO 

EY 2YO  
or Under 

2 

Under 2 

  

EY Funding Entitlement Age - April 2022 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
EY 4YO 

or EY 
3YO 

EY 3YO 
or EY 
2YO 

EY 2YO  
or Under 

2 
  

EY Funding Entitlement Age - April 2023 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
EY 4YO 

or EY 
3YO 

EY 3YO 
or EY 
2YO 

  

EY Funding Entitlement Age - April 2024 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
School 

Age 
EY 4YO 

or EY 
3YO 

  Home Address Total Number of Children 303 275 243 252 221 

  

        GP Registration Data. NHS Digital, October 2019 
       Registration by home address  measures the number of children registered with GPs who live within the specified area 

The 0 year old total can be an underestimate given the time lag in registering newly born children with GPs. 

The table assumes that children who become EY 4 year olds in the summer term (i.e. are Age 5 by 31st August), will be already attending school in the 
academic year just gone and will not take up EY funding as EY 4 year olds 

        

        

        Eastbourne West Housing Completions 2017/18 To 
2023/24 

      Early Years Planning Area 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Eastbourne West 51 74 93 143 131 119 92 

        EY Model Results 27.07.20 (Apr20) Charts test 

       Completions to 2018/19 are actuals from the district and borough councils. 
Completions from 2020/21 are projections from the Pupil Model 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 22 October 2020
	4 East Sussex Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2020
	Appendix 1


